
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE
MARICOPA ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS

TRANSPORTATION REVIEW COMMITTEE
 

April 28, 2016
Maricopa Association of Governments Office

302 North First Avenue, Suite 200, Saguaro Room
Phoenix, Arizona

MEMBERS ATTENDING
  Avondale: David Janover
  ADOT: Mike Kies
*Apache Junction: Giao Pham
*Buckeye: Scott Lowe
*Cave Creek: Ian Cordwell
  Chandler: Dan Cook, Chair
*El Mirage: Jorge Gastelum
  Florence: Christian Collins for Jess    

Knudson
*Fountain Hills: Randy Harrel  
*Gila River Indian Community: Tim Oliver
  Gilbert: Kristin Myers for Leah Hubbard
  Glendale: Debbie Albert, Vice Chair
  Goodyear: Rebecca Zook
  Litchfield Park: Woody Scoutten

  Maricopa County: Clem Ligocki for  
Jennifer Toth

  Mesa: Jeff Martin for Scott Butler
*Paradise Valley: Jim Shano
  Peoria: Andrew Granger
  Phoenix: Ray Dovalina
#Pinal County: Louis Andersen
  Queen Creek: Mohamed Youssef
  Scottsdale: Todd Taylor for Paul Basha
  Surprise: Mike Gent
#Tempe: Shelly Seyler
  Valley Metro: John Farry
*Wickenburg: Vince Lorefice
*Youngtown: Grant Anderson

EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS ATTENDING
*Street Committee: Chris Hauser, City of El 

Mirage
*ITS Committee: Marshall Riegel, City of     
     Phoenix
*FHWA: Ed Stillings 

*Bicycle/Pedestrian Committee: Jim Hash,    
    City of Mesa
*Transportation Safety Committee: Dana 

 Alvidrez, City of Chandler

* Members neither present nor represented by proxy.   + - Attended by Videoconference
    # - Attended by Audioconference

OTHERS PRESENT
Bob Hazlett, MAG
Chaun Hill, MAG
Teri Kennedy, MAG
Audra Koester Thomas, MAG
David Massey, MAG
Stephen Tate, MAG

Cato Esquivel, Goodyear
Kay Lumley, Sundt
Dan Marum, Wilson & Co.
Christine McMurdy, Goodyear
Steve Schwab, Sundt
Patrick Stone, ADOT

1



1. Call to Order 
 

Chair Dan Cook called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. Chair Cook noted that the 
quorum requirement for the April 28, 2016 Transportation Review Committee meeting 
was 14 committee members.  

 
2. Approval of Draft March 31, 2016 Minutes 
 

Chair Cook asked the committee if there were any comments on the draft April 28, 2016, 
meeting minutes. There were none. Mr. Jeff Martin moved to approve the minutes. Ms. 
Kristin Myers seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously. 

 
3. Call to the Audience 

 
There were no public comments from the audience.  

 
4. Transportation Director's Report 
 

Chair Cook invited Mr. Eric Anderson, MAG Transportation Director, to provide the 
Transportation Director's Report. 
 
Mr. Eric Anderson stated that Regional Area Road Fund (RARF) revenues were up 2.7% 
over the previous month and up 3.9% year-to-date. He noted that sales tax growth is 
slowing. He stated that there is some concern about the economy slowing. He noted that it 
was surprising that sales tax revenue growth was not higher with lower gas prices leading 
to more discretionary income available. 
 
Mr. Eric Anderson stated that Highway User Revenue Fund (HURF) revenues were up 
9.8% over the previous month with 6% growth year-to-date. He noted that Vehicle License 
Tax and fuel taxes are continuing to lead growth with relatively low fuel prices continuing. 
 
Mr. Eric Anderson noted that MAG hosted a meeting of the Intermountain West MPOs, 
including representatives from Colorado, Utah, Wyoming, Washington, and Nevada. He 
stated that it is good to see what other people are doing and share what MAG is doing. 
 
Mr. Eric Anderson stated that MAG hosted a Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) 
workshop on benefit-cost analysis for operations. He stated that operations are a bigger 
deal and that focusing on operations emphasizes maximizing throughput on the existing 
roadway system. 
 
Mr. Eric Anderson stated that MAG held the mid-phase public involvement meeting the 
previous day for the development of the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) and 
Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) amendments. He stated that there were three 
presentations on the TIP, the RTP, and Valley Metro’s planning activities. He stated that 
the meeting was very well attended. 
 
Mr. Eric Anderson stated that oral arguments for the South Mountain Freeway lawsuit will 
be held on May 11th. 
 

 
 2 



Chair Cook thanked Mr. Anderson for his report. 
 
5. Consent Agenda 
 

Chair Cook directed the Committee's attention to the consent agenda items. 
 

Chair Cook asked the Committee if there were any questions or comments. There were 
none. 

 
Mr. Jeff Martin moved to approve the consent agenda. Mr. Ray Dovalina seconded the 
motion. The motion carried unanimously. 
 
5A B  Project Changes - Amendment and Administrative Modification to the FY 
2014-2018 MAG Transportation Improvement Program, Fiscal Year 2016 Arterial Life 
Cycle Program, and As Appropriate, to the 2035 Regional Transportation Plan 
 
The MAG Transportation Review Committee, by consent, recommended   approval of 
the amendments and administrative modifications to the FY 2014-2018 MAG 
Transportation Improvement Program, Fiscal Year 2016 Arterial Life Cycle Program, and 
as appropriate, to the 2035 Regional Transportation Plan. 
 
5B B  Federal Highway Administration and Federal Transit Administration Funding 
Projections for the MAG Region 
 
The MAG Transportation Review Committee, by consent, received the Federal Highway 
Administration and Federal Transit Administration funding projections for the MAG 
region. 
 

6.  Arterial Life Cycle Program Fiscal Year 2016 Closeout Process 
 

Chair Cook invited Ms. Teri Kennedy to present this item. 
 
Ms. Kennedy stated that the Arterial Life Cycle Program (ALCP) is a financial 
management tool that is a component of the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP). She 
stated that ALCP projects are funded through a combination of RARF and Federal funds 
that are reported in the financial management tool, and that projects require a 30% local 
match. She stated that projects are funded as reimbursements. 
 
Ms. Kennedy noted that, in the ALCP policies and procedures, section 250 guides the 
RARF closeout process and section 260 guides the Federal fund closeout process. 
 
Ms. Kennedy stated that there is a $30 million balance of RARF available for closeout. She 
noted that estimated revenues to June are $11 million and that there were $4.6 million in 
reimbursement requests. She noted that only 38% of programmed RARF reimbursements 
will be issued this year. 
 
Ms. Kennedy stated that MAG issued a notice for RARF closeout applications in the 
middle of March with an April 4th due date. She stated that MAG received two project 

 
 3 



applications and that one was deemed ineligible. She noted that Lake Pleasant Parkway 
was deemed eligible. She stated that the project had been scheduled for reimbursement in 
2025 and 2026, but that the project has been completed and MAG is recommending a full 
advancement of reimbursement to close out the project.  
 
Ms. Kennedy stated that MAG is estimating a $13.5 million Federal fund balance for 2016. 
She noted that this could change as projects fail to obligate by June 1st, old projects close 
out, and MAG receives COG and MPO loan requests from across the state. She noted that 
the Federal fund closeout applications were also due April 4th. She stated that MAG 
received three applications: Mesa’s Gilbert Road light rail extension project, design for 
Chandler’s Chandler Heights Road project, and design for Chandler’s Ocotillo Road 
project. She stated that MAG staff recommended advancement of the Gilbert Road light 
rail project for $13.5 million and that any changes that come in before June 1st will be 
reflected in the final closeout amount. She stated that any obligation authority that comes in 
after July 1st will not be used on the Mesa project and would be available for the Chandler 
projects. She stated that the Chandler projects will be programmed in state fiscal year 2017 
and that MAG will issue the transfer for funding of the Gilbert Road light rail project on 
July 15th. 
 
Mr. Jeff Martin moved to recommend approval of the proposed Fiscal Year 2016 closeout 
list and necessary amendments and administrative modifications to the FY 2014 - FY 2018 
MAG Transportation Improvement Program, the FY 2016 Arterial Life Cycle Program, 
and as appropriate, to the 2035 Regional Transportation Plan. Mr. Mohamed Youssef 
seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously. 
 
Mr. Jeff Martin thanked MAG staff for their work on tracking revenues and expenditures 
and giving projects the opportunity to advance reimbursements. He stated that the region 
does not want to lose obligation authority. Chair Cook expressed his agreement. 

 
7. Federal Highway Administration Repurposing of Earmarked Funds in Arizona and the 

MAG Region 
 

Chair Cook invited Mr. Patrick Stone of ADOT to present this item. 
 
Mr. Stone stated that he would give a brief status update, noting that not much has changed 
in the last month. He stated that last month Ms. Teri Kennedy had presented what FHWA 
had shown, which was specific earmarks with unobligated balances. He stated that FHWA 
did not say that there was less money available, noting that an obligation limitation of 85% 
under SAFETEA-LU applied to each of those earmarks. He noted that there was an 
unobligated amount of $3.2 million, but that only $2.88 million of obligation authority was 
available. He noted that ADOT was focused on the $2.88 million available for repurposing. 
He stated that nothing has been obligated on either earmark. 
 
Mr. Stone presented all projects with over 10% of their funding obligated and what their 
balances are. He stated that previously ADOT had looked at $2.1 million in available 
funding but that this is only $556,000 with the obligation limitation factored in. He stated 
that the two projects with the largest balances are active projects where the money will be 
used: the Avenida Rio Salado project in Phoenix and Interstate 10 collector/distributor 
roadway right of way for ADOT. He stated that there is $60,000 to repurpose in the MAG 

 
 4 



region. He noted that projects are in the final voucher process and may not be complete by 
the Federal deadline. 
 
Mr. Stone stated that, statewide, there was originally $32 million available for repurposing, 
but that number has been reduced to $21 million after obligation limitations. He presented 
a map with 50 mile radii around earmark projects with funding for possible repurposing. 
He stated that ADOT went through the list of projects to confirm the right earmark and 
right amount was shown. He noted that there is a deadline in August to reuse earmarks in 
Fiscal Year 2016, which will not happen. He noted the deadline is September 12th for 
reusing earmarks in future fiscal years. He stated that ADOT plans to have a plan in place 
by June 30th. 
 
Mr. Eric Anderson stated that projects could be in fiscal year 2017. Mr. Stone responded 
that projects will be in Fiscal Year 2017 through Fiscal Year 2019. He stated that unless 
there is an absolute need to reuse funding ADOT could turn it around quickly, but it is 
worth it to have an extra two weeks. 
 
Mr. Stone stated that now that ADOT has identified the available funding, they now need 
to develop a list of projects. He noted that they do not want to put all this money on a single 
project because if the project does not go, they will lose the money. He stated that ADOT 
will look at ten projects potentially.  
 
He stated that ADOT has identified the original intent and balances, and that Phoenix has 
reached out with information about their earmarks. He noted that ADOT needs to look 
statewide at existing earmarks. 
 
Vice Chair Debbie Albert noted that Glendale has sent a letter to ADOT and noted that 
Glendale’s position is that money should be used for projects in the same area on US-60 
from 67th Avenue to McDowell Road. 
 
Chair Cook asked what the distance requirement for reuse was. Mr. Stone responded that 
funding must be reused within 50 miles of the original earmark, which is a large area. 
 
Chair Cook thanked Mr. Stone for his presentation. 
 

8. Regional Freeway and Highway Program Update – 2016 Rebalancing 
 
 Chair Cook invited Mr. Bob Hazlett to present this item. 
 

Mr. Hazlett noted that this is the same presentation that he gave to the Transportation 
Policy Committee the previous week. 
 
Mr. Hazlett stated that Waze is a crowdsourced app for finding ways through and around 
congestion and that they did a poll last year on what region has the best driving experience. 
He stated that Phoenix was rated the best in the world. He stated that when MAG came 
across this statistic. Mr. Dennis Smith was very impressed and encouraged economic 
development stakeholders to say that the region has a very good transportation system. 
 
Mr. Hazlett stated that, since 2006, many projects in the program have been completed. He 

 
 5 



presented a map showing completed projects and noted that there was not much room left 
on the map in terms of what has been completed. He stated that $4.1 billion had been spent 
to date on all of the improvements. He stated that 58 percent of general purpose lane-miles 
and two thirds of High Occupancy Vehicle (HOV) lane-miles in the plan had been 
constructed to date. He stated that 61 percent of the overall system promised in 2006 has 
been built at halfway through the program. He stated that 660 lane-miles is more than most 
states can deliver in 20 years, and that the region has built 66 lane-miles per year even with 
the recession. He noted that the South Mountain Freeway will add 180 lane-miles and bring 
the system to 80% complete. 

 
Mr. Hazlett presented the remaining projects in the plan. He stated that the SR-101L/Pima 
Freeway project from SR-202L/Red Mountain Freeway to Shea Boulevard is wrapping up. 
He stated that the SR-303L Grand Avenue interchange and El Mirage Road interchange 
projects are under construction. He stated that the Bell Road and Grand Avenue 
interchange project is under construction. He noted that, even with the pending court case, 
the SR-202L/South Mountain Freeway project is underway as ADOT has been acquiring 
right of way and begun the demolition process. 

 
Mr. Hazlett stated that the remaining projects include adding lanes on the SR-101L/Pima 
Freeway from I-17 to Shea Boulevard, adding lanes on the SR-101L/Price Freeway from 
US-60 to SR-202L, adding lanes on I-10 from the Pecos Stack to Riggs Road, and 
extending SR-303L in Goodyear from I-10 to Van Buren Street with planning underway to 
extend to MC 85. He stated that this does not include what will come out of the I-10/I-17 
Spine study, which has been a collaborative effort between ADOT, FHWA, MAG, and the 
cities of Chandler, Phoenix, and Tempe, and the Town of Guadalupe. He stated that there is 
a near term improvement strategy being developed for the area on I-10 from the Broadway 
Curve to the Pecos Stack.  

 
Mr. Hazlett presented a graph of year-end cash flow balances from a presentation to the 
Transportation Policy Committee in 2012. He stated that they were looking at taking 
$300-400 million out of the program in addition to the money taken out in 2009. He stated 
that since then, ADOT, FHWA, and MAG had been working on ways to improve project 
delivery to bring costs down. He stated that they had been looking at cash flow and project 
closeout to ensure remaining funds were reprogrammed. He stated that they had also been 
looking at design innovations, alternate delivery processes such as design-build, 
construction management at risk contracts, or public-private partnership (P3) delivery that 
like is being used on the South Mountain Freeway. He stated that the value engineering 
component has been a very important part of the design innovation process.  
 
Mr. Hazlett stated that, starting with the South Mountain Freeway project, they have 
undertaken a rigorous cost risk analysis process approach. He noted that there have been 
thirty workshops since 2012 to look at risks associated with projects. He stated that, with 
cost estimating, there has been a tendency to place a bank of contingency on things without 
looking at the specifics of risks and what risks can be retired. He stated that a cost risk 
analysis workshop had just been completed on SR-347 in Maricopa, which is an ADOT 
project outside of the program, to make sure they do not lose their TIGER grant. 
 
Mr. Hazlett stated that the South Mountain Freeway would be built with a P3 delivery 
model. He stated that ADOT received an unsolicited proposal but that MAG and ADOT 

 
 6 



had been discussing the P3 model for a while. He noted that the project developers looked 
at every traffic interchange and the basic construction of the corridor itself to identify cost 
savings. He stated that the 30 year maintenance included in the contract gives a fixed cost 
which will become important in future programs. He stated that HURF and RARF 
revenues have been up and that the FAST Act provided more Federal funding for the 
program. 
 
Mr. Hazlett presented an updated cash flow graph. He stated that there is now a $640 
million surplus in the program compared to 2012 which is approximately a $1 billion 
improvement in the cash flow. He stated that the program has never been in better health. 
 
Mr. Hazlett stated that the surplus gives an opportunity to bring deferred projects back into 
the program. He stated that the Transportation Policy Committee had discussed potential 
criteria for bringing projects back in, with looking at project priorities, project readiness, 
travel demand, and funding realities. 

  
Mr. Hazlett presented a map of all projects which were deferred in 2009 and 2010. Ms. 
Chaun Hill gave the Committee members a table showing updated cost opinions. Mr. 
Hazlett noted that in 2009 and 2012 MAG deferred approximately $7 billion in projects 
and that the updated cost opinions showed these projects as costing approximately $2.8 
billion. He noted that these costs are based on the costs to build projects to date and the 
results of the Cost Risk Analysis process. He stated that the cost opinions are under 
continual review and subject to change. Mr. Hazlett noted that the potential for new traffic 
interchange construction outside the scope of Proposition 400 is included in the table. He 
added that technology needs and operational enhancements need to have equal weighting 
in terms of project priorities. 
 
Mr. Hazlett stated that a freeway lane should carry 2,200 vehicles per hour per lane, but 
that the current system has flow breaking down at around 1,400 vehicles per hour per lane 
right now. He noted that ADOT’s Transportation Systems Management and Operations 
(TSM&O) division is looking at how to recover some of this freeway lane capacity, and 
that recovering some of this capacity would be equivalent to adding a new travel lane 
without very much construction. 
 
Mr. Hazlett stated that travel demand on the system is changing. He noted that I-10 in 
Buckeye is becoming a bottleneck and a safety issue because of higher traffic resulting 
from increased activities at the ports in California. He noted that during the I-17 widening 
from 2006 to 2008, the current conditions at the Pinnacle Peak Road and Happy Valley 
Road traffic interchanges were not anticipated. He stated that currently there are issues 
with traffic backing up onto the freeway mainline and traffic on the Pinnacle Peak Road 
overcrossing. 
 
Mr. Hazlett stated that stated that project readiness will be an issue, both for if projects are 
ready and how they are positioned in the timeline of the freeway program. He noted that in 
2012, it was identified that the South Mountain Freeway projects would command the 
majority of cash flow in the next five years. He stated that it may be possible to slide some 
projects back if they are ready in time. He noted that the P3 process is providing savings in 
both construction cost and time, but that advancing projects must be ready in time. He 
noted that there is concern about a limited amount of staff at FHWA who are able to work 

 
 7 



on environmental approvals and that we do not want to overwhelm them. 
 
Mr. Hazlett said that the $640 million surplus is based on revenue streams which are tied to 
the economy. He noted that the FAST Act is a five-year act but only provides three years of 
funding. He stated that the MAG staff recommendation to the Transportation Policy 
Committee is to reprogram $500 million initially and return in a few years to see where 
things stand. 
 
Mr. Hazlett stated that he received feedback from the Transportation Policy Committee 
that the region should build what was promised to the voters. He asked the Transportation 
Review Committee members if there is anything missing that should be considered. 
 
Mr. Hazlett stated that the plan is for staff to identify potential scenarios after receiving 
feedback from the Transportation Policy Committee, Transportation Review Committee, 
and Management Committee. He stated that the scenarios will be presented in June and 
then finalized in August for potential approval by Regional Council in September or 
October with subsequent amendment to the RTP and appropriate air quality analyses. 
 
Chair Cook expressed his thanks to MAG and Mr. Hazlett and Mr. Eric Anderson for the 
work they have done on the rebalancing along with ADOT’s efforts.  
 
Ms. Kristin Myers stated that Gilbert thanks MAG and ADOT on the comprehensive 
evaluation of the program, which is bringing opportunities to the region from the West 
Valley to the East Valley. She stated Gilbert’s thanks for the consideration of the traffic 
interchange at SR-202L and Lindsey Road. She asked if there will be an evaluation of 
whether or not there is still a need for additional general purpose lanes on SR-202L to 
US-60. Mr. Hazlett responded that staff is looking at mainline projections and needs 
through 2035 and this will be determined based on land use changes. 
 
Mr. Ray Dovalina thanked MAG and ADOT. He stated that, with Phoenix’s 
Transportation 2050 program funding opportunities for light rail and buses, Phoenix would 
like to see if there is an opportunity to add the I-10 to I-17 direct ramp. 
 
Mr. Clem Ligocki asked if there would be any more discussion at the Transportation 
Review Committee. Mr. Eric Anderson stated that there can be another presentation in 
May as MAG staff work through the criteria. He stated that subcategories such as safety, 
economic development, and traffic volumes will be considered. He stated that there can 
certainly be a presentation, but MAG will respect the Transportation Policy Committee’s 
role in the development of the rebalancing as they developed the plan in 2003. 
 
Mr. Jeff Martin asked if there will be multiple scenarios for the Transportation Policy 
Committee to look at in June. Mr. Hazlett responded that the intent is to have multiple 
scenarios, but if the criteria become so defined that there is only one scenario, then they 
will not waste the committee’s time with multiple scenarios. 
 
Mr. David Janover expressed Avondale’s appreciation for the work MAG has done. He 
noted that, in addition to the safety issue, the plan has economic impacts that are of interest 
to multiple communities. He stated Avondale’s continued interest in the SR-30 reliever 
project for I-10. Mr. Hazlett stated that the work has been a team effort with ADOT and 

 
 8 



FHWA. 
 

Chair Cook thanked Mr. Hazlett for his presentation. 
 

9. Request for Future Agenda Items 
 

There were no requests for future agenda items. 
 
10. Member Agency Update 
 

Mr. Ray Dovalina noted that the Black Mountain Boulevard project opened a couple weeks 
ago. He stated that this was a great achievement and a model for the type of projects the 
region works with. He stated that Phoenix worked with MAG on the funding side and 
ADOT on the connection to the freeway. He noted that everyone is satisfied with that 
project. 

 
11. Next Meeting Date 
 

The next regular Transportation Review Committee meeting will be scheduled for 
Thursday, May 26, 2016 at 10:00 a.m. in the MAG Office, Saguaro Room.  

 
The meeting was adjourned at 10:46 a.m. 

 
 9 


